Sources for the Study of the Hillsborough Football Disaster 1989









© Sheffield Libraries Archives and Information 2009 - 2015 (v. 2.16)
Front cover illustrations - extracts from contemporary publications.

Contents

Introduction	4	
Adding to our collections		
The Hillsborough Stadium Football Disaster, 15 Apr 1989		
Timeline of key events, 1989 - 2000	6	
List of documents, books, photographs and other items available at Sheffield Libraries, Archives and Information		
Newspapers	7	
 Football magazines / programmes 	8	
 Hillsborough Independent Panel 	8	
Public inquiry	8	
Stuart-Smith Scrutiny	9	
South Yorkshire Police	9	
West Midlands Police	9	
 Independent Police Complaints Commission 	10	
 South Yorkshire Police Authority 	10	
 Devon and Cornwall Police 	10	
South Yorkshire Metropolitan Ambulance Service	10	
 Northern General Hospital, Sheffield 	10	
 South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service 	11	
 South Yorkshire Fire and Civil Defence Authority 	11	
 HM Coroner, South Yorkshire 	11	
 Judicial Review 	11	
Sheffield City Council	12	
 Other Sheffield Organisations and Individuals 	14	
 <u>Liverpool Organisations</u> 	15	
Disaster Appeal	15	
 Books and magazine / journal articles 	16	
 Photographs 	18	
<u>Useful websites</u>	19	
Library and archive collections held elsewhere	20	
Sheffield Local Studies Library and Sheffield Archives facilities	21	
Contact details	22	

Introduction

This booklet lists sources available within Sheffield Libraries Archives and Information for the study of the Hillsborough Football Disaster of 1989.

It is not a detailed account of the tragedy; it merely points the reader who wishes to carry out their own research to what is available within Sheffield Libraries and Archives.

Much of the material listed in this *Guide* is open to public inspection and can be accessed within a few minutes of being requested in the Library or Archives reading room. However, some of the official records, such as those from the police and the coroner, can only be accessed with their permission. For further information on accessing the official records please contact Sheffield Archives.

An extensive bibliography of published information relating to the Disaster is listed in the complementary study guide: <u>Hillsborough Stadium Disaster: A Bibliography</u> (available at www.sheffield.gov.uk/archives (click on publications)).

Adding to our collections

Sheffield Libraries and Archives seeks to preserve information about events in our city's history. Though a painful part of both Liverpool's and Sheffield's story we are keen to ensure that as much information about the disaster is preserved for current and future generations. We do not place any value judgements on the items in our care, other than we consider them worthy of permanent preservation nor do we seek to interpret their meaning, for that is the role of the researcher. If you have photographs or personal papers from the events of April 1989 please consider safeguarding them for current and future generations by placing them in the care of Sheffield Libraries and Archives. It is only through the generosity of individuals and organisations that we are able to have a complete record of important events in the history of Sheffield and the nation. We are interested in photographs, flyers and posters, minutes of meetings etc. For advice on record keeping and the facilities we offer please contact Peter Evans, Archives & Local Studies Manager (pete.evans@sheffield.gov.uk or 0114 203 9397).

You can download a copy of this Study Guide from www.sheffield.gov.uk/archives

Hillsborough Stadium Football Disaster, 15 April 1989

At the FA Cup semi final between Liverpool and Nottingham Forest which was held at Sheffield Wednesday's Hillsborough Stadium on 15 April 1989 a tragedy unfolded that involved the death of many Liverpool supporters.

As the kick-off time approached there was an increasing crush outside the Leppings Lane turnstiles. To avoid injury, the police decided to open an exit gate to let more fans into the stadium. This resulted in a major influx of fans into an already crowded part of the ground, causing many to be crushed against security and crush barriers on the terraces in the West Stand. 96 of them died from their injuries.

An inquiry, chaired by Lord Justice Taylor, published its findings (known as the Taylor report) in August 1989 and January 1990. It outlined the events of that day and made a number of recommendations on football stadium design.

In the immediate aftermath of the tragedy there was considerable controversy over the way some newspapers reported the events and also in the conduct of the South Yorkshire Police and other agencies. This controversy is represented in the resources listed in this Guide.

The memories of that tragic day are still raw and the controversy about who was responsible continues. During the two decades that have passed a large amount of material has been published or otherwise made available. This *Guide* provides a detailed list of much of that information.

Timeline showing key dates 1989 - 2012

15 Apr 1989	FA Cup semi final between Liverpool and Nottingham Forest hosted at Sheffield Wednesday's Hillsborough Stadium.	
Aug 1989	Lord Taylor's Inquiry into the Hillsborough Stadium Disaster published its interim report.	
Sep 1989	West Midlands Police begin their criminal and disciplinary investigations	
Dec 1989	South Yorkshire Police accept civil liability and pay damages to the bereaved	
Jan 1990	Lord Taylor's Inquiry into the Hillsborough Stadium Disaster published its final report.	
Mar 1990	West Midlands Police submit their report to the Director of Public Prosecutions	
Aug 1990	Director of Public Prosecutions decides not to bring any criminal charges against any individual or organisation.	
28 Mar 1991	Inquest into the deaths at the stadium returns a verdict of accidental death.	
4 Oct 1991	Memorial at Sefton (Merseyside) unveiled.	
1992	Six families applied for a Judicial review of the Coroner's inquests.	
Mar 1993	96 th victim, Tony Bland died.	
Nov 1993	Judicial review of inquests was dismissed.	
1996	Granada TV produced a television drama, entitled 'Hillsborough'.	
Feb 1998	Lord Justice Stuart-Smith reports on his scrutiny of the Hillsborough evidence. Home Secretary announced there would be no new public inquiry.	
1999	Permanent memorial erected at Hillsborough Stadium.	
2000	Prosecutions at Leeds Crown Court of Chief Superintendent Duckenfield and Superintendent Murray end with Murray not guilty and no verdict reached on Duckenfield.	
2012	Hillsborough Independent Panel report on the disclosure of documents published.	
19 Dec 2012	High Court quashed original Coroner's Inquest verdict of accidental death.	

List of documents, books, photographs and other items available at Sheffield Libraries, Archives and Information

Newspaper reports, etc.

Many of the newspapers listed here were published online by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012:

http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/newspapereditions.html

Relevant articles and features appear in local and national newspapers. The main title available at Sheffield Local Studies Library is the (Sheffield) *Star.* There are also collections of national newspapers acquired for their coverage of the disaster:

National and local (Sheffield and Liverpool) newspapers for Sunday 16th and Monday 17th April 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 498 VL and MP 499 VL; also available on microfilm)

Liverpool Echo Memorial Edition, 28 Apr 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 500 VL)

Sheffield Green 'Un: Cup Horror at Hillsborough, 15 Apr 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 501 VL)

Sheffield Star: Gateway to Hell, Special Sunday edition, 16 Apr 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 497 VL)

National and local newspapers, 15 - 25 April 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: microfilm)

Newspaper cuttings and articles, April 1989 - April 1990 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: microfilm)

Local newspaper cuttings collection, 1989 - c. 2010 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: microfiche)

Archives of some national newspapers are available on the internet, notably *The Times* (http://archive.timesonline.co.uk) and *The Guardian* (http://archive.guardian.co.uk)

Home Office news releases relating to the disaster, Aug 1989 – Jan 1990 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4787(a-e) M)

The Press Council: The Hillsborough Inquiry, 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 3068 S)

Miscellaneous national and local newspapers and articles relating to the 10th anniversary of the Hillsborough Football Disaster, published April and May, 1999 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 1445 (a-e) L)

Miscellaneous national and local newspapers relating to the publication of the report of the Hillsborough Independent Panel, 13 Sep 2012 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 572 VL)

Football Magazines / Programmes

Match - The Hillsborough Tragedy, 22 Apr 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4778 M)

Shoot - Hillsborough Special Report, 29 Apr 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4782 M)

Shoot - Never Again, Football Must Learn from the Horror of Hillsborough, 22 Apr 1989

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4781M)

World Soccer - Hillsborough Horror, May 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4779 M)

When Saturday Comes - Hillsborough: Unanimous Verdict, Jun 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4780 M)

Sheffield Wednesday Football Club - first match programme after the disaster, 9 May 1989

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 3069 S)

Hillsborough Independent Panel

Hillsborough Independent Panel Hillsborough: The Report of the Hillsborough Independent Panel (TSO, 2012)

Available online (September 2012) at http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SQ; also available at Sheffield Archives: HIL/LOCAL)

Public Inquiry

Hillsborough Stadium Disaster: Inquiry by the Rt Hon Lord Justice Taylor: Interim Report (HMSO, 1989)

(Sheffield Archives: HIL/LOCAL; Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SQ; Sheffield Reference Library: 363.3497 Q)

Hillsborough Stadium Disaster: Inquiry by the Rt Hon Lord Justice Taylor. Final Report, (HMSO 1990)

(Sheffield Archives: HIL/LOCAL; Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SQ; Sheffield Reference Library: 363.3497; Hillsborough Library: 796.334 Q)

Hillsborough Stadium Disaster: Inquiry by the Rt Hon Lord Justice Taylor. Transcript of Proceedings, 15 May - 29 Jun 1989

These transcripts were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/home-office/transcripts-of-proceedings-april-june-1989/perpage/20/page/1.html (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SSTQ)

Stuart-Smith Scrutiny

Scrutiny of evidence relating to the Hillsborough Football Stadium disaster Sir Murray Stuart-Smith, (HMSO, 1998)
The report was republished by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/home-office.html (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SQ; another copy in Central Library Store: 363.3497 Q)

South Yorkshire Police

South Yorkshire Police: Hillsborough Disaster papers, 1989 - 1990s These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/south-yorkshire-police.html

(Sheffield Archives: POL)

'The Hillsborough Stadium Disaster, 15 April 1989: a Brief Summary' (South Yorkshire Police: Freedom of Information Unit, 2005) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 5801 M)

West Midlands Police

Papers and other items relating to the work undertaken by West Midlands Police in relation to their report to the Director of Public Prosecutions, 1989 - 1997 These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/south-yorkshire-police.html

(Sheffield Archives: WMP)

Independent police Complaints Commission

Independent Police Complaints Commission Decision in Response to the Report of the Hillsborough Independent Panel (IPCC, 2012) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 6358 M)

South Yorkshire Police Authority

Minutes, agendas and related, 1989 onwards
These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012:
http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/south-yorkshire-police-authority.html

(Sheffield Archives: SYJA)

Devon and Cornwall Police

Inquiry Report into the Hillsborough Stadium Disaster by Deputy Chief Constable J Phillips, Devon & Cornwall Police.

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/south-yorkshire-police.html

(Sheffield Archives: POL/28)

South Yorkshire Metropolitan Ambulance Service

Operational papers, papers submitted to Taylor Inquiry and Judicial review, etc These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/yorkshire-ambulance-service.html

(Sheffield Archives: AMB)

Northern General Hospital, Sheffield

Major catastrophe register, lists of patients, patient movement records, etc These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/sheffield-teaching-hospital.html

(Sheffield Archives: NHS2/7)

South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service

South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service: Hillsborough Inquiry records These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/south-yorkshire-fire-and-rescue-service.html

(Sheffield Archives: SY341)

South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Minutes, agendas and related, 1989 onwards

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/south-yorkshire-fire-authority.html

(Sheffield Archives: SYJA)

HM Coroner, South Yorkshire

Inquest and other papers, 1989 - 1998

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/south-yorkshire-coroner.html

(Sheffield Archives: CC5)

Dr Stefan Popper, HM Coroner for South Yorkshire

Correspondence and other papers

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/dr-popper.html (Sheffield Archives: X535)

Judicial Review

Photocopies of the 1993 judicial review papers (application, affidavits, Judgement and Order, etc). The judicial review sought to quash the original inquest verdict and was based on the decision of the coroner not to allow any evidence of events after 3.15pm.

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/sheffield-city-council/hillsborough-disaster-judicial-review-of-the-findings-of-the-coroners-inquests-brought-by-relatives-/perpage/20/page/1.html

(Sheffield Archives: X242)

Sheffield City Council

Sheffield City Council: Papers of Clive Betts, Leader

(Note: written permission is required to access these papers. Contact Sheffield Archives for information)

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012:

http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/clive-betts.html (Sheffield Archives: MP 8)

The following papers from Sheffield City Council were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012:

http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/sheffield-city-council.html

Sheffield City Council, Lord Mayor's Office: correspondence, comprising letters of condolence from private individuals and official organisations and institutions, and letters concerning donations to the Disaster Appeal, 1989 (Sheffield Archives: acc. 1994/70)

Sheffield City Council: Signed minutes of Policy Committee with report 'M' South Yorkshire Police Authority copy minutes of meeting of 21 April 1989 referring to the tragedy; Report 'N' 'The Hillsborough Disaster the Libraries response', 17 May 1989 (Sheffield Archives: CA-POL/46)

Sheffield City Council: Signed minutes of Policy Committee referring to the 'Hillsborough Disaster – Overview and Proposal for Future, together with Report 'G' minutes of Police and Community Safety Panel (Policy), 26 Sep 1989 (Sheffield Archives: CA-POL/49)

Sheffield City Council: Signed minutes of Policy Committee referring to the Report of the Director of Legal and Administrative Affairs on the Final Report of Lord Justice Taylor into the Hillsborough Stadium Disaster, 27 Feb 1990 together with Report 'V' (Sheffield Archives: CA-POL/54)

Sheffield City Council: Council Summons – minutes of the Policy Committee of 17 May 1989 refers to costs incurred by West Midlands police in conducting the police inquiry, and also to the role played by a number of Council Departments during and after the tragedy

(Sheffield Archives: CA-COU/175 page 167. Copy also available at Sheffield Local Studies Library: 352.02)

Sheffield City Council: signed minutes of the Family and Community Services Programme Committee with reference to the work of the Social Services Department staff, with report 'l', 10 May 1989

(Sheffield Archives: CA-FCO/27)

Sheffield City Council: Council Summons - minutes of the Family and Community Programme of 10 May 1989 refers to the role played by the Social Services Department during and after the tragedy

(Sheffield Archives: CA-COU/175 page 16. Copy also available at Sheffield Local Studies Library: 352.02)

Sheffield City Council: Council Summons - minutes of Policy Committee of 26 Sep 1989 refers to meetings of the South Yorkshire Police Authority and to 'Hillsborough'

Disaster - Overview and proposals for Future'. This refers to issues around licensing, in addition to the role played by a number of Council Departments during and after the tragedy and ground safety.

(Sheffield Archives: CA-COU/178 pages 627 and 653. Copy also available at Sheffield Local Studies Library: 352.02)

Sheffield City Council: Council Summons - minutes of Municipal Enterprise and General Services Programme Committee of 18 Sep 1989 refers to 'Safety of Sports Grounds' (General Safety Certificates) in the wake of the disaster; alterations to the Hillsborough stadium (office accommodation and hospitality suite), and additional staffing required in the Licensing Section

(Sheffield Archives: CA-COU/178 pages 508, 509-510 and 513. Copy also available at Sheffield Local Studies Library: 352.02)

Sheffield City Council: Municipal Enterprise and General Service Committee signed minutes of meetings of the General Purposes Panel regarding safety of sports ground, together with Committee Report Q 'Safety of Sports Grounds', updating report and copy correspondence, and reports C and D regarding proposed works at Sheffield Wednesday Football Club, 17 Aug 1989, 1 Sep 1989 and 18 Sep 1989. (Note: written permission is required to access these papers. Contact Sheffield Archives for information).

(Sheffield Archives: CA-MEG)

Sheffield City Council: Health and Consumer Services Committee signed minutes of 20 Jun 1989 includes a report 'Hillsborough Disaster: Bereavement and Support Services Division'.

(Note: written permission is required to access these papers. Contact Sheffield Archives for information).

(Sheffield Archives: CA-HEC/30)

Sheffield City Council: Building Services

Inquiry papers

(Sheffield Archives: X485)

Sheffield City Council: Social Services Hillsborough Task Team

Working papers, 1989 - 1990

(Sheffield Archives: X489 and X490)

Recommendations to the Hillsborough Inquiry on behalf of the Sheffield City Council, Report to the Head of Administrative and Legal, Nov 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4985 M)

Coping after Hillsborough leaflet, Sheffield City Council Family and Community Services Department, Apr 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 3067 S)

Sheffield City Council: Council Summons - minutes of Council of 3 Oct 2012 refers to the Disclosure of papers by the Hillsborough Independent Panel (Sheffield Archives: CA-COU. Copy also available at Sheffield Local Studies Library: 352.02)

Other Sheffield Organisations and Individuals

David Blunkett, MP for Sheffield Brightside

Correspondence and other papers

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/david-blunkett.html (Sheffield Archives: MP6)

Martin Flannery, MP for Sheffield, Hillsborough

Correspondence and other papers

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/martin-flannery.html (Sheffield Archives: MPD)

Jim Wardrope, Consultant in Accident and Emergency Medicine, Northern General Hospital

Correspondence and other papers

These papers were disclosed by the Hillsborough Independent Panel in 2012: http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/browse/by-contributor/wardrope-jim.html (Sheffield Archives: X533)

Dr John Clark, Pathologist

Papers

Written permission is required to access these papers.

(Sheffield Archives: X534)

BBC Radio Sheffield tapes of news broadcasts, 'phone-ins, and discussions etc, c. 1989 - 1990

(Sheffield Archives: SY425 and SY685)

Disaster or opportunity: the report of a day conference held on October 31st 1989, reflecting on the Hillsborough Disaster and the role of counselling services in future disasters (Sheffield Area Bereavement Forum, 1989) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: PAMP 184 SQ)

St Marie's Roman Catholic Church, Sheffield - a requiem mass for those who died in the tragedy of Hillsborough, [1989] (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 3065 S)

Ss Peter's and Paul's Church, Sheffield - memorial service, 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 3066 S)

Hillsborough: the lessons for health care - recommendations of a joint symposium (Trent Regional Health Authority and Mersey Regional Health Authority, 1990) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SQ; another copy at Sheffield Archives: in Trent Regional Health Authority minutes, NHS32/1/1/22 (restricted access bound with non-related confidential paper))

Brief factual report on the hospitals' response to the emergency and list of notable visitors to the Hospitals, appendix G, notice of meeting and accompanying papers for the Sheffield Health Authority, 8 May 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 362.11 SQ)

Liverpool Organisations

Liverpool City Council Hillsborough Disaster Working Party interim report, 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SQ)

Liverpool City Council Hillsborough disaster working party's submission to part II of Lord Justice Taylor's inquiry, 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SSTQ)

'Hillsborough and After: The Liverpool Experience: First Report Prepared for Liverpool City Council', Sheila Coleman (Edge Hill College of Higher Education, Centre for Studies in Crime and Social Justice, Apr 1990) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SQ and summary at MP 4786 M; Sheffield Arts and Social Sciences 363.3497 Q)

'Hillsborough and After: The Liverpool Experience', Phil Scraton and others (Edge Hill College of Higher Education, 1992) (Sheffield Arts and Social Sciences Library: 363.3497)

No Last Rights: The Denial of Justice and the Promotion of Myth in the Aftermath of the Hillsborough Disaster', Phil Scraton, Ann Jemphrey and Sheila Coleman, (Edge Hill College of Higher Education, 1995) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 155.935 S)

Words of Tribute: An Anthology of 95 Poems, written after the Hillsborough Tragedy Collected by Katy James and Robert Littler (Liverpool University Community Resource Unit and others, 1989) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 821.08 SST, also available in a number of community libraries: 821.08)

Disaster Appeal

The Hillsborough Disaster Appeal, interim report of the trustees, Apr 1990 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 796.334 SSTQ; another copy available at Sheffield Archives: CA-POL/57 report KK)

Books, magazine / journal articles, DVDs, etc.

'Death on the Terraces: the Contexts and Injustices of the 1989 Hillsborough Disaster' from *Soccer and Disaster*, edited by Paul Darby, Martin Johnes and Gavin Mellor, (Routledge, 2005); also in <u>Soccer and Society</u>, Vol. 5, No. 2, Summer 2004, pages 183-200

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 5918 M; (www.statewatch.org/news/2004/nov/death-on-the-terraces.pdf accessed November 2010)

When you Walk Through the Storm: the Hillsborough Disaster and one Mother's Quest for Justice, Sean Smith (Mainstream, 1999) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 155.935 S; Manor Library 363.3497)

Remember Hillsborough, Chris Searle and Steve Chew (Archive Publications, 1990) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 821.08 STQ)

'Remember Hillsborough', Chris Searle in *None But Our Words* (Open University Press, 1998) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 428 S)

Hillsborough: The Truth, Phil Scraton (Mainstream, 1999) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 155.935 S, also available at Sheffield Archives and in a number of community libraries 363.3497)

The Hillsborough Football Disaster: context and consequences (Em-Project Limited, 2009)

Available online (July 2009) at http://downloads.hfdinfo.com/8HFDCombined.pdf (Sheffield Local Studies Library: PAMP 599)

Disaster at Hillsborough (Yorkshire Television, 1990) (Sheffield Local Studies: video LS 168)

Hillsborough (Granada Television, 1996) (screenplay by Jimmy McGovern). 2009 release.

(Sheffield Archives: HIL/LOCAL and Local Studies Library: DVD 89)

Disaster and After: Social Work in the Aftermath of Disaster, Tim Newburn (Jessica Kingsley, 1999)

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: 361.3 SST; another copy in Central Library Store 361.3)

The Day of the Hillsborough Disaster: a Narrative Account, compiled and edited by Rogan Taylor, Andrew Ward and Tim Newburn (Liverpool University Press, 1995) (Sheffield Local Studies Library 155.935 S, Also available at Sheffield Archives, Sheffield Arts and Social Sciences Library 363.3497, and in a number of community libraries)

The Nightmare of Hillsborough, Mike Bartram, (Countywise Ltd., 2011) (Sheffield Local Studies: 321.08 SST)

Aftershock: the Psychological and Political Consequences of Disaster, David Cohen (Paladin, 1991)

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: 155.935 S)

'A Medical and Moral Dilemma', Kevin Kelly, taken from *The Month*, Apr 1993

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 5174 M)

My Liverpool Home Dalglish, Kenny (Hodder & Stoughton; Limited Edition, 2010) Chapter 14 related to Hillsborough. (Sheffield Local Studies Library: B. DAL S)

'Hillsborough - Some Personal Contemplations', Ian Taylor, from *New Left Review*, Sep/Oct 1989

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4785 M and 796.334 SQ)

University of Sheffield, Institute of Work Psychology A Human Factors Analysis of The Hillsborough Disaster Prepared for the Sheffield Wednesday Football Club (Institute of Work Psychology, c. 2003) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 6357 M)

'The Hillsborough Tragedy', James Wardrope and other, from *British Medical Journal*, Nov 1991 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4039 M)

'Keeping Chaos at Bay: The Place of Ritual and Community in the Events of Hillsborough', Alan Billings, from *Crucible*, Jan – Mar 1990 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4783 M)

'We went to see Liverpool get to Wembley – The experiences of a Hillsborough Survivor', Martin Hinks, from *Working with Disaster: Social Welfare Interventions During and After Tragedy* edited by Tim Newburn (Longman, 1993) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4614 M)

'Reactions of Survivors' in *Survivors*, Geraldine Sheridan and Thomas Kenning (Pan, 1993) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 155.935 S)

'Damages for Nervous Shock following Hillsborough', Peter Madge, from *The Safety* and Health Practitioner, Dec 1990 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4401 M)

'Hillsborough and Psychiatric Illnesses – The House of Lords Decides', from *The Safety and Health Practitioner*, May 1992 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4356 M)

'Nervous Shock and Alcock: The Judicial Buck Stops Here', K J Nasir, from *The Modern Law Review*, Vol. 55, Sep 1992 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4626 M)

'After Hillsborough', Wendy Owen, from *Nursing Times*, Vol. 86 No. 25, Jun 1990 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 4784 M)

Wade, Richard "The Politicisation of the Hillsborough Disaster", <u>ESTRO (Essex Student Research Online)</u>, (no date), Vol. 1, pages 1-9

https://www.essex.ac.uk/journals/estro/documents/issue1/FullIssue.pdf (accessed Oct 2009) (Sheffield Local Studies Library: MP 6124 M)

For Those Not Yet Born, Susan Colyer, 1989 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 821 Coly SST)

Guiding Star, Jonathan Harvey (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 822HARV SST bound in: Plays: 2/Harvey, Jonathan)

Brief article on the role of Catholic Church in the aftermath of the disaster, *Catholic Voice*, Jun 1989

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: 282.4274 SF)

Brief article on the memorial garden in Hillsborough Park, *Roundabout*, No. 28, Summer 1992

(Sheffield Local Studies Library: 649.1 S)

Brief tribute to three Sheffield University students who died in the tragedy, 'University of Sheffield Newsletter', 3 May 1990 (Sheffield Local Studies Library: 378.4274 SQ)

Photographs

There are many photographs contained in the archives of official organisations listed above. In addition there are images from the Sheffield Local Studies Library collection available to search online at www.picturesheffield.com.

Websites

Hillsborough Family Support Group (www.hfsg.co.uk) (accessed December 2015)

Hillsborough Justice Campaign (http://www.contrast.org/hillsborough/home.shtm) (accessed December 2015)

Hillsborough Independent Panel (http://hillsborough.independent.gov.uk/) (accessed December 2015)

Health and Safety executive: files regarding the Hillsborough Disaster (http://www.hse.gov.uk/foi/releases/hillsborough.htm) (accessed December 2015)

BBC website: On this day 15 April 1989 and 28 March 1991 (www.bbc.co.uk/onthisday)

BBC website: Liverpool Local History (www.bbc.co.uk/liverpool/content/articles/2006/12/07/local_history_hillsborough_feature.shtml) (accessed Oct 2012)

Liverpool Echo http://www.liverpoolecho.co.uk/

University of Liverpool Football Industry Group factsheet (www.liv.ac.uk/footballindustry) (accessed December 2015)

Professor Phil Scraton, author of "Hillsborough: The Truth" and "No Last Rights: The Denial of Justice and the Promotion of Myth in the Aftermath of the Hillsborough Disaster" online abstracts: http://tinyurl.com/nell4e4 (accessed December 2015)

Online newspaper archives are a good source for national press articles. See *The Times* (http://gale.cengage.co.uk/times.aspx/#) and *The Guardian* (http://www.guardian.co.uk/gnm-archive) (accessed December 2015)

There are many videos and clips from television reports and documentaries available on http://www.youtube.com/?gl=GB&hl=en-GB (accessed December 2015)

Library and Archive collections held elsewhere

Liverpool Libraries and Liverpool Record Office will also hold relevant information. https://liverpool.gov.uk/libraries/archives-family-history/ (accessed December 2015) Their contact details are:

Liverpool Libraries and Archives, William Brown Street, Liverpool L3 8EW. Telephone: 0151 233 5817. Email recoffice.central.library@liverpool.gov.uk

The Access to Archives online database (A2A) contains catalogues describing archives held locally in England and Wales www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/a2a (accessed December 2015)

The Archives Hub contains catalogues describing archives held in universities and colleges in the UK http://archiveshub.ac.uk/ (accessed December 2015)

The National Archives (TNA) holds records of central government departments and agencies which will include references to the tragedy. For example it has the reports and papers of the 'Inquiry into the Hillsborough Stadium Disaster (Taylor Inquiry)' amongst the records of the Home Office (ref. HO 397). You can search the TNA catalogue online at www.nationalarchives.gov.uk (accessed December 2015)

Professor Phil Scraton, author of "Hillsborough: The Truth" and "No Last Rights: The Denial of Justice and the Promotion of Myth in the Aftermath of the Hillsborough Disaster" Publications page: http://tinyurl.com/occxyrp (accessed December 2015)

House of Commons Library: Copies of the documents examined by Lord Justice Stuart-Smith as part of his review of Hillsborough papers were placed in the House Library www.parliament.uk (accessed December 2015)

Home Office Library: Frost and others, plaintiffs v The Chief Constable of South Yorkshire Police and Ors(sic), defendants (Smith Bernal Reporting Ltd, 1996 (346.06)) www.homeoffice.gov.uk (accessed December 2015)

House of Lords - Judgments - White and Others v. Chief Constable of South Yorkshire and Others, 3 Dec 1998 http://www.parliament.the-stationeryoffice.co.uk/pa/ld199899/ldjudgmt/jd981203/white01.htm (accessed 2009, link broken 2012)

There are many videos and clips from television reports and documentaries available on http://www.youtube.com/?gl=GB&hl=en-GB (accessed December 2015)

Sheffield Archives and Local Studies services collect and preserve original records and printed material relating to Sheffield and the surrounding area.

The information dates from the 12th century to the present and relates to Sheffield, South Yorkshire and north Derbyshire.

Included are extensive collections of books • pamphlets • photographs • church registers • newspapers • census records • minutes • diaries • films • maps • deeds • records from schools • hospitals • businesses and charities • family estates • personal papers etc.

Our facilities include:

Study areas • expert staff on hand to help you make the most of your visit • a library of reference books • photocopying and photography services • free Internet access • microform machines and printers • catalogues and indexes • a range of useful publications for sale • CD-Rom library • online image library.

Adding to our collections

Sheffield Libraries and Archives seeks to preserve information about events in our city's history. If you have photographs or personal papers that may be worth preserving please consider safeguarding them for current and future generations by placing them in the care of Sheffield Libraries and Archives. It is only through the generosity of individuals and organisations that we are able to have a complete record of important events in the history of Sheffield and the nation. We are interested in photographs, flyers and posters, minutes of meetings etc.

For advice on record keeping and the facilities we offer please contact us: archives@sheffield.gov.uk or 0114 203 9395.

Sheffield Local Studies Library 1st floor Central Library Surrey Street Sheffield S1 1XZ	Sheffield City Archives 52 Shoreham Street Sheffield S1 4SP	
Tel: 0114 273 4753 Fax: 0114 273 5009	Tel: 0114 203 9395	
archives@sheffield.gov.uk	archives@sheffield.gov.uk	
www.sheffield.gov.uk/archives	www.sheffield.gov.uk/archives	
(selected) Sheffield Local Studies Library catalogue https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/libraries/archives-and-local-studies/catalogues.html	(selected) Archives catalogues: https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/libraries/archives-and-local-studies/catalogues.html and http://discovery.nationalarchives.gov.uk/	
For 65,000+ images of Sheffield: www.picturesheffield.com		
Sheffield City Council	www.sheffield.gov.uk/archives	
B	www.twitter.com/shefflibraries	
8	http://shefflibraries.blogspot.co.uk/	
flickr	www.flickr.com/photos/shefflibraries	
YouTube	www.youtube.com/user/SheffieldArchives1	
	www.facebook.com/shefflibraries	